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Financial Highlights

(T inlacs)

2019-2020 | 2018-2019 2017-2018
Total Income 1,69,054.93 | 1,73,550.41 | 2,20,421.73
Profit / {Loss) Before Depreciation (8,858.70)  (17,623.84} 3,424.55
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax {11,613.38) | (21,598.06) 138.056
Earlier Years Tax {727.11) - {2,213.59)
Profit / {Loss) After Tax {6,269.02) (14,826.71) 961.21
Total Comprehensive Income {6,898.18) | (15,126.59) 963.98
Share Capital 268.80 268.80 268.80
Reserves and Surplus 42,732.16 51,610.03 66,736.61
Own Funds (Net Worth) 43,000.96 51,878.83 67,005.41
Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) (4,071.27) 568.81 7,2v73.28
Gross Block 71,496.08 73,471.87 68,647.96
Net Block 18,795.02 22,858.01 21,870.36
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GANNON DUNKERLEY & CO., LTD.
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report together with Audited Statement of Accounts for the
year ended 31st March, 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS: - ~(inlacs)

2019-2020 |  2018-2019
Revenue from Operations & Other Income .......................... 1,69,054.93 1,73,550.41
Profit / (Loss) Before Depreciation and Taxation.................... (8,858.70) (17,623.84)
DEPRTECIALION: 51 ixusissimssmiosvvmoroms oo e o s s Samaeas 3,527.50 3,974 .22
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax ........ccocooviiiiiniiiiinece e (11,613.38) (21,5698.06)
Earlier Years Tax .........cccccoiiiiiiiiii e (727.11) “
DEfETIE TaX suwsvmsmummmmssmmss e oo e 5T« o3 (4,617.25) (6,771.35)
Profit / (Loss) After Taxation ..........ccccov v (6,269.02) (14,826.71)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year ............ccccooeene (629.16) (299.88)
Total Comprehensive Income forthe Year ..............ccccooee. (6,898.18) (15,126.59)
DIVIDEND:

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend due to operating losses in the Company during this year under
consideration.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND:

As per section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has transferred unpaid/unclaimed dividend for the
financial years 2011-2012 to the Iinvestors Education & Protection Fund (IEPF).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

During the year under review the Company has been able to procure fresh orders to the tune of ¥ 870 crores.
Procurement of jobs has been very slow due to constraints in obtaining Bank Guarantees required for tendering.
Capex cycle in the Private Sector continue to be subdued. Execution of jobs has been slow mainly due to
inadequate working capital and reluctance of bankers to issue fresh bank guarantees even for existing projects. The
working capital cycle of the Company continues to remain elongated due to delay in collection of receivables and
non-achievement of milestones. The deadlock regarding the reimbursement of additional liability being incurred by
the Company due to the levy of GST in ongoing Government Contracts since 01/07/2017 continues in more than
60% of the cases. Profitability continues to remain under pressure mainly due to slow execution leading to
suboptimal recovery of fixed costs and also due to the additional GST liability.

The Company is continuing its efforts to arrive at a closure of the contract for the Housing Project in Libya. The law
and order situation in Libya is still not conducive due to which meeting with ODAC officials is getting delayed. The
meeting is likely to be held sometime during 2021 wherein the Company expects to resolve the matter mutually. The
Bank Guarantee invocation matter continues to be stayed as per direction of Hon'ble Bombay High Court. The
significant devaluation of the Libyan Dinar vis-a-vis the US Dollar during January 2021 is a big relief for the
Company.

SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing financial
statements of subsidiaries and of joint venture companies in FormAOC 1 is annexed.

AUDITORS’ REPORT:
As regards the observations and qualifications of the Auditors, the Company is taking necessary steps to get the

same addressed and their Report also contains comments offered by the Company. The note forming part of the
annual accounts also adequately deal with their remarks and provide the required explanations.
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AUDITORS:

M/s. PARK & COMPANY, Chartered Accountants, (FRN No. 116825W), were appointed as Auditors of the
Company at its 94th Annual General Meeting who hold office upto the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board recommend their appointment as Auditors of the Company.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN:

Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, is annexed herewith to this report.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars of conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo, are
annexed.

DIRECTORS:

Shri Ravinder Kumar Manchanda (DIN 01801659) resigned from the Directorship of the Company with effect from
9th October, 2019. The Board places on record its sincere appreciation towards the valuable guidance given by him
during his tenure as Director of the Company.

Shri Kamal M. Morarka, (DIN 00460013) Promoter Director of the Company expired on 15th January, 2021. The
Board places on record its sincere appreciation towards the valuable guidance given by him during his tenure as
Director of the Company.

Shri Parag C. Mehta (DIN 00172972) retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

During the year four meetings of the Board of Directors were held on 21st June, 2019, 9th October, 2019, 28th
November, 2019 and 7th February, 2020. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

As required pursuant to clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors confirm as under:

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for that period;

(c) thatthe Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

(d) thatthe Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) That the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, GUARANTEES GIVEN OR INVESTMENTS MADE AND ARRANGEMENT
WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The details of loans given, guarantees given or investments made and arrangement with related parties are
annexed.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR Policy of the Company and the details about the development of CSR Policy
and initiatives taken by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility during the year is annexed separately. The
CSR contribution of the Company for the year is ¥ 10.00 lacs.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 have been disclosed as per Division
Il of Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, 2015:

The financial statements comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) as amended
from time to time.

SECRETARIALAUDIT:

Pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your Company has appointed V.N. Deodhar & Company,
Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the Secretarial Audit of your Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is
annexed herewith as “Annexure” to this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The particulars of employees in accordance with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel)Rules, 2014, are annexed.

By Order of the Board
(H.L. Pandey) (Parag C. Mehta)
Mumbai, 30th January, 2021 Executive Director Director
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2019-20

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OQUTGO.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

The Company lakes adequate measures for conservation of energy wherever possible to commensurate the
nature and kind of the operations of the Company.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

There is no separate Research and Development Department in the Company. However, Company adopls modern
techniques in its operations, wherever feasible.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND QUTGO:
Foreign Exchange earned T 111.23 lacs

Foreign Exchange used: ¥ 12,52 lacs
On account of foreign travel and other matter

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014, AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTOR'S REPORTFOR THE YEAR ENDING
318TMARCH, 2020

Sr. Name Designationand  Remuneration  Qualification Experience Date of Age Last employment
No. nature of duties (%) Years Commencement  Years  before joining the
of Employment Company and period
1. Singh Mangj Managing Director  1,60,00,000  B.E (Civil), 33 18.04.2018 58 IL&FS Engineering
Kumar M.BA, (Finance} & Construction
Co. Lid.
2. Pandey HL Executive Director 1,30,90,787  S.8.C,, Diploma 58 01.03.1975 76 Bharat
in Computer Relractories Lid,
Motes:

(1) The figures of remuneration include Salary, Aliowances and monetary value of Perquisites as per Income Tax Rules, Leave Encashment,
Bonus, Commission, Company's Conltribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Scheme, Leave Travel Assistance, and
Reimbursement of Medical Expenses.

{2) Theemployment of Shri Singh Manoj Kumar and Shri Pandey H.L. is on contractual basis.




GANNON DUNKERLEY & CO,, LTD.
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of
Gannon Dunkerley & Co., Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Gannon Dunkerley & Co., Limited (“the
Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement Of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information in which are included the returns for the year ended on that date audited by the branch auditors of the
Company'’s branches located at Hyderabad and Kolkata and unaudited returns of Libya branch of the Company
(hereinafterreferred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph below, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and the other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, of its loss and total comprehensive income, its
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Attention is invited to—

* Note No. 40 regarding compliance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) —115;

» Note No. 41 regarding non-provision for leave encashment benefits to the employees in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)—19;

* Note No. 43 regarding unavailability of complete details on inventories and trade receivables and probable
impairment thereof;

= Note No. 44 regarding non availability of balance confirmations for major balance sheet items;

» Note No. 46 regarding physical verification of assets and probable impairment thereof;

» Note No. 48 regarding non provision of interest on certain borrowed funds; and

* Inrespect of New Delhi, Mumbai and Water Treatment Divisions ofthe Company, intereston certain joint
ventures are not disclosed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 31, which in the opinion of
the management, is not material to the Company,

And its consequential effects on the state of affairs and loss for the year of the Company, to the extent applicable.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI")
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters:

. Note No. 45 regarding an overseas project of the Company being withheld due to political unrest in that country
and financial statements not being audited;

* Note No. 47 regarding non-charging of interest on loans and advances in the nature of loans to a subsidiary, bodies
corporate and others; and

* Note No. 52 which explains the uncertainties and the management's assessment of the financial impact due to
lock-down and other restrictions and conditions related to the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which definitive
assessment of the impact on the subsequent period is highly dependent upon the circumstances as they evolive.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financlal Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Management
Discussion and Analysis, Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and
audilor'sreport thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respectto
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give atrue and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerns and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of the internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
evenls or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial stalements, including the
disclosure, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of two branches (apart from the Libya branch whose financial statements
are unaudited) included in the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company whose financial statements
reflect total assets of 363,578.26 lacs as at 31st March, 2020 and total revenues of ¥48,832.93 lacs for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial Ind AS statements. The financial statements of these
branches have been audited by the branch auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinionin so
farasitrelates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these branches, is based solely on the report of
such branch auditors.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government
of India terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure — A, a statement on the
matters specified in clause 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; (refer note no. 43,44 and 46)

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) Thereports on the accounts of two branch offices of the Company audited under section 143 (8) of the Act
by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report.
However, (i) the Auditors of Kolkata branch have not submitted their report on the matters required to be
reported under the Order in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, and (ii) the Auditors of Kolkata and
Hyderabad branches have not submitted their report with respect to the adequacy of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls. We have not,
therefore, been able to incorporate the observations on these two branches to that extent;

d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profitand Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
ofaccount;

e) Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act;
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f

g)

h)

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020, from being
appointed as a director in terms section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
operating effectiveness of such controls, our separate reportin annexure — B may be referred,;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanation givento us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements;

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There has been no delay in transferring the amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For PARK & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 116825W

ASHISH DAVE
Partner

Mumbai Membership No. 170275
30th January, 2021 UDIN: 21170275AAAAAK3371
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of information and explanations given to us,
we state that:

1.

Inrespect of fixed assets:

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

b. Details regarding physical verification of the fixed assets of the Company have not been furnished to us. In
absence of any audit evidences, we are unable to comment on the same. However, in the opinion of the
management, the fixed assets were physically verified at reasonable intervals in a phased manner in
accordance with a programme of physical verification and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

c. Thetitle deeds ofimmovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

Details regarding physical verification of the inventories of the Company have not been furnished to us. In
absence of any audit evidences, we are unable to comment on the same. However, in the opinion of the
management, the inventories were physically verified at reasonable intervals during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company has granted unsecured loans to the companies, firms or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Since terms and conditions for some of these loans
are not slipulaled, we cannololfer any comments as lo the repayment of principal amount or overdue amounts,
if any. No interestis charged on some of these loans (refer note no. 47).

The Company has complied with provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and securities, to the extent applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any
otherrelevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder with regard to the deposits accepted from
the public. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

The Central government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Inrespect of statutory and other dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Cess, Goods & Service Tax and other material statutory
dues, to the extent applicable, with the appropriate authorities during the year. There are no undisputed
statutory dues outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except
for the following:

Particular Tin lacs
Goods & Service Tax 2,713.97
Lahaur Cess 15 50
Value Added Tax 95.80
Provident Fund and ESIC 72.92

11
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b. Thereareno statutory dues, which have notbeen deposited on accountof dispute except for the followings:

Nature of Dues | Statute Tinlacs | Relevant Forum where dispute
I N Year is pending
Value Added Tax Maharastra Value Added 525.80 | 2007-08, The Jt. Commissioner,
Tax Act 2010-11, Commercial Taxes
2013-14,
2014-15,
Value Added Tax | Punjab Value Added Tax Act 385.87 gggg?g Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal
Value Added Tax | West Bengal Value Added 284.26 | 2011-12, The Jt. Commissioner,
Tax Act 2012-13, Commercial Taxes
Excise Duty Central Excise Duty Act 3.04 The Supreme Court of India
Service Tax Service Tax Rules 149.80 CESTAT - Telangana
Service Tax Service Tax Rules 191.71 | 2011-12, CESTAT - Kolkata
2012-13,
Income Tax Income Tax Act 2,110.60 | 2006-07 to | Mumbai High Court
2010-11
Service Tax Service Tax Rules 766.08 | 2004-05 to | CESTAT - New Delhi
2007-08
Value Added Tax | Bihar Value Added Tax Act 260.70 | 2013-14 Joint Commissioner Appeals
Labour Cess Building and Other 406.13 | 2015-20 The Commissioner of
Construction Workers Labour Cess
Welfare Cess Act

8. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to banks or financial institutions except for
the dues of certain banks to the extent the amounts stated under note no. 17 and 18. The Company has not
obtained any borrowings from the government or by way of debentures.

Lender wise details of the overdue are as under:

Balance as on

Bank/Institution 31st March, 2020
gin lacs

Mahindra & Mahindra Financial Services Limited 22.64
PNB Housing Finance Limited 269.95
SREI Equipment Finance Private Limited 2,718.15
Yes Bank Limited 410.67
Toyota Financial Services India Limited 0.62
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 14.49
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 166.69
Union Bank of India (Ert. Corporation Bank) 369.06
State Bank of India 15,408.97
The Federal Bank Limited 37219
IDBI Bank Limited 134.51
Punjab National Bank (Ert. Oriental Bank of Commerce) 1,288.02
Canara Bank (Ert. Syndicate Bank) 728.66
UCO Bank 4,057.56
Indusind Bank Limited 3.74
Total 25,965.92
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9. Terms loans obtained by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained. The
Company has not raised any money, during the year, by way of public offer (including debt instruments).

10. Tothe best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud
on or by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees was noticed or reported during the
year.

11. Managerial remuneration paid or provided by the Company during the year is in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12. Since the Company s not a Nidhi Company, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable tothe
Company.

13. Alltransactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act and the details
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review.

156. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions during the year with directors or persons
concerned with him.

16. The Company is notrequired to be registered under Section 45-I1A of the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934.

For PARK & COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 116825W

ASHISH DAVE

) Partner
Mumbai Membership No. 170275
30th January, 2021 UDIN: 21170275AAAAAK3371
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2020
ANNEXURE -~ B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

{Referred ta in paragraph 2(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
evendate)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reperting of Gannon Dunkerley & Co., Limited {"the
Company") as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the yearended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
ware operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the limely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the exient applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
inall material respecits.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud orerror,

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinionon the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that -

(1} Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary o permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

{3y Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

14



GANNON DUNKERLEY & CO_, LTD.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over FInanclal Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion orimproper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
hecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st
March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl except that the
documentations of the transactions in certain areas are not adequate and internal control on cerlain financial
transactions were found to be inadequate and needs improvement.

For PARK & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 116825W

ASHISH DAVE

. Partner
Mumbai Membership No. 170275
30th January, 2021 UDIN: 21170275AAAAAK3371
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

(i baus)

As at As at
Partlculars Note No. 31st March, 2019
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets ;
Froperty, PMant and EQUIPMENnt.........cooicim e 2 17,387.40 21,439.88
Capital WOrke-in- Progress ..o - 7.82
Investment Properties . 3 0.88 0.88
Right to use of Assets .. 4 3.37 -
Intangible Assels .........c.ccoeieiinn 5 9.75 15.80
Intangible Asset Under Development ... 1,393.62 1,393.62
Financial Assels :
INVESINENIS oottt e e sne et 8 3,618,983 6,387.80
LOBIS (iitiviiersiosiet s s eie s eeeate s ber s e aan s ebas e st ere e b e e tabe s es e e s e anseane 7 11,541.25 3,754.04
Other Financlal Assets 8 5,354.38 938.93
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) . . 20 4,071.27 -
Other Non-Curr@nt ASSEIS ..o e s 9 12,281.37 12,227 .15
55,672.20 46,166.02
Current Assets :
IVENMOMIES ooiviieee e et ce e cees e ee cees et sessets s bt e asrraeaberaans 10 50,688.82 50,273.42
Financial Assets :
IAVESIMBILS oo e oo ar s e e bs e aes - -
Trade Receivables " 11 96,918.03 1,03,775.13
Cash ang Cash EqUIvalents ... 12 12,832.08 4,870.07
Olher Bank BalancCes ......occevveeieceiiees e e cerieer s enteens o cos nveronne 13 8,837.27 8,275.16
Loans . 7 50,646.66 68,961.01
Other FIRanCial ASSEIS .ot 8 3.08 2.18
Current Tax Assets (Net) .o 14 11,125.31 12,501.38
Other CUTeNt ASSBES ..o et r e e g 33,980.94 30,289.51
2.64,833.19 2,79,847.86
Total ASSOLS .. ..ooooocor e 32050079 22811388
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity :
Equity Share Capilal . ... 15 268.80 268.80
ONET EQUILY orecr e cr e ceomereeneceneasseeeceneses seeseancenssesesserensmseecessasncesss 16 42,732.16 51,610.03
43,000.96 51,878.83
Liabilities :
Non-Current Liabilities :
Financial Liabilities :
Borrowings 17 3,158.89 13,179.54
Other Financial Li 18 - -
Provisions ... 19 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) . 20 - 568.81
Other Non-Current Liabilities 21 - -
3,159.89 13,748.35
Current Liabifities :
Financial Liabilities -
BOIOWINGS .o e e e e e s e e s 17 68,188.31 70,209.65
Trade Payables ... 92 73,490.84 79,479.48
Other Financial Liabilities ... 18 41,756.53 16.345.98
Other Current Liabilities ... 21 88,291.61 89,318.13
Current Tax Liabilities {Net) 14 246574 5,627.47
Provisions 19 1561.51 505.98
2,74,344.54 2,60,486.70
3,20,505.39 326,113.88

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For PARK & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

ASHISH DAVE
Partner

Mumbai, 30th January, 2021
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Company Secrelary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P.C. MEHTA

KIMAYA C. SANCHET! .
MANOJ KUMAR SINGH
H.L. PANDEY

Mumbai, 30th January, 2021

Directors

Managing Director
Executive Director
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GANNON DUNKERLEY & CO_, LTD.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

R _ I : _Rinlecs)
Particulars Note No.  2019-2020 2018-2019
REVENUE:
Revenue from Operations ............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiceece e 23 1,63,362.99 1,71,087.50
ONEFIRCOMAE. wopeocvvcvnsumssramsommesmoviummnss s (R sy s I ESEE TR SO REES0 R 24 5,691.94 2,462.91
Total Revenue ..., 1,69,054.93 1,73,550.41
EXPENSES: — —_—
Cost of Materials Consumed 25 1,010.74 1,424 .86
Purchases of Traded Goods .... - 9.00
Operating Charges ................. 26 1,37,277.10 1,45,301.08
Changes in Inventories .............. 27 (602.35) 2,889.11
Employee Benefits Expenses .. 28 11,826.63 12,763.73
Financq Qosts ............. s . 29 19,357.80 11,728.92
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses .. 30 3,527.50 3,974.22
Other EXPENSES ..oiiiiiiiie et reaa e 31 9,043.71 17,057.55
Total EXPenses ............ccccccocooovercnnn. 11,81,441.13 1,95,148.47
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional Items and Tax (12,386.20) (21,598.06)
Exceptional HemMS ..o 36 772.82 -
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (11,613.38) (21,598.06)
Tax Expenses :
CUITENE TAX cvveeiiiriieitieit ettt e esbe s s e s s 14 - -
Earlier Years’ Tax ... (727.11) -
DEEITEA TAX ..oivieieeieiee ettt ettt e et en sttt n et et aras (4,617.25) (6,771.35)
Profit/(Loss) fOr the YEar ..............occooooviiieoeeeeeoeeeee e (6,269.02) (14,826.71)
Other Comprehensive Income :
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
a. Re-measurements of Defined Benefit Plans.......................cccoocoeevvn. (65.34) 191.39
b. Gains on Investments in Equity Instruments classified as FVOCI ....... - (268.85)
C. TaX/IMPACIS: O ADOVE! sy sisumsmssmmsmmsmmessnm s v oo s s 22.83 (66.88)
Items that may be reclassified to Profit or Loss
a. Exchange Differences on Foreign Currency Translation of Foreign
OPEIALIONS ..ttt (586.65) (155.54)
Other Comprehensive Income forthe Year ................c...cccoevvivveiiiinncnenns (629.16) (299.88)
Total Comprehensive Income forthe Year ..............cccc.ocvoeeeceieicivccne (6,898.18) (15,126.59)
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (Z)..........c.ocooivcvievievirreiiosieisievee e 32 (233.22) (551.59)
Face Value Per SNare (T) .......cocoovovevieeeeieeeeeeoeee e 10.00 10.00
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For PARK & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants PC. MEHTA Direstors
KIMAYA C. SANCHETI o
ASHISH DAVE R. P. AGARWAL MANOJ KUMAR SINGH Managing Director
Partner Company Secretary H.L. PANDEY Executive Director
Mumbai, 30th January, 2021 Mumbai, 30th January, 2021
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

_Particulars

(Rinlacs)

A. SHARE CAPITAL

31st Marchg(ﬂ?

31st March, 2020

At the beginning of the Year ..........cccvvviiii e 268.80 268.80
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the Year...........cccccccoeeee... _ -
Attheend ofthe year .............cccccovvieviincsnnicnnnen e ereercnennns 268.80 268.80
B. OTHER EQUITY
Other Comprehensive Income
Net Exchange Net
General Retained Gain/(Loss) Differences Gain/(Loss)
Particulars Reserve Earnings on Fair  on Foreign on Fair Total
9 Value of Currency Value of
Equity Translation Defined
Instruments of Foreign Benefit Plan
Operations
As at 318t March, 2018 ... 65,000.00 37.87 2,248.52 (893.10) 343.34 66,736.63
PrOfit fOr the YEAI .....vvecvorecieeeeerceeeeeesese s - (14,826.71) - - (14,828.71)
Exchange Differences on Foreign Operations ...........c....coo...nn.. - - - (155.54) - (155.54)
Other Comprehensive Income for Ihe Year (Net of Tax) ............ - - (268.85) - 124.51 (144.34)
Transfer from Retained Eamnings to General Reserve .............. - - - - - -
Final Dividend, declared and paid during the Year .................... - - - - - -
Dividend Distribution TaxX .........c.ccoumevivririiesinnesisiennin 2 = - = - 2
As:at:31st March, 2019 ......coumnpss s 1 65,000.00 (14,788.84) 1,979.67 (1,048.64) 467.85 51,610.04
Profit /(Loss) for the Year ..., - (6,269.03) - - - (6,269.03)
Exchange Differences on Foreign Operations .............ccccoo..... - - - (586.65) - (586.65)
Other Comprehensive income for the Year ..........ccccoocvvrriinnne - - (1,979.67) - (42.51) (2,022.18)
As at 315t March, 2020 ...........ccoocoovvreveerieeee e 65,000.00 (21,057.87) - (1,635.29) 42534 42,732.16

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For PARK & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

ASHISH DAVE R. P. AGARWAL

Partner Company Secretary

Mumbai, 30th January, 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P.C. MEHTA

KIMAYA C. SANCHETI
MANOJ KUMAR SINGH

H.L. PANDEY

Mumbai, 30th January, 2021

Directors

Managing Dircctor
Executlve Director
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GANNON DUNKERLEY & CO_, LTD.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(Tinlacs)
. ) 2019-2020 2018-2019
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit/(Loss) for the YEar ........cceieriiecvsinsineeseseeenes (6,269.02) (14,826.71)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortization ... 3,627.50 3,974.22
INComMe TaxX EXPENSES .....cocvvvviviiieceee s (5,344.36) (6,771.35)
Net Foreign Exchange Loss/Gain ..., (586.65) (155.54
Gain on Valuation of Mutual Fund Measured at Fair Value ...... . (4.79
Provision for Doudtful Debts ..., 799.11 4,304.52
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments ........... (657.43) (8.38)
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Investments ..., (1,742.55) (28.43)
Sundry Balances Written Back ... (1,189.74) (656.67)
DIVIAENA ..o s - (25.20)
Interest ... 12,299.35 10,437.14
Operating Profit / (Loss) Before Working Capital Changes ......... 7,205.23 11,165.52
Adjustments for :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables .............. 12,740.31 1,254.78
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current and Non-Current Assets (3,755.65) (55.17)
INVEIMOTIES wrecresmmmsmmmssvsmsssssmmmmmyerssryssumns SR (415.40) 3,271.50
Increase/(Decrease) in ProviSions .............cccccoeovevievevieiienieniennns (354.47) 81.76
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current and Non-Current | iahilities  (1,026.52) 13,386.06
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables ... (611.82) (302.22)
Cash Generated from Operations ..........c..cccocovovoveeeciecceeee. 6,576.45 17,636.71
Direct Taxes Paid ..o (1,058.55) 12,723.14 (78.35) 28,723.88
Net Cash from Operating Activities ........................ 6,454.12 13,897.17
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments ..........c..ccoocooveeeiiennn, 815.95 5.293.30
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments ... ?f 531 852 ® (69.84;
Sale of Property, Plant & EQuipments ..., 1'908.95 139 81
Dividend RECEIVEA .........cccooovvvmrroniienreroesoeesecosoeeeesseseoeeeesreesenes T 2590
' Interest Received 2114.58 1 10746
Net Cash used in investing Activities ...................... 5739.43 (4,090.67)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds/(Repayments) from Loans Borrowed (Net) ..........c........ 10,183.33 (1,481.13)
INterest Paid ..o s (14,413.92) (11,544.60)
Dividend Paid . (0.85) (2.25)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities .................... (4,231.44) (13,027.98)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ....................... 7,962.10 (3,221.48)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the Year ............. 4,870.07 8,091.55
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at end of the Year ................. 12,832.17 4,870.07
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For PARK & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants P.C. MEHTA )
KIMAYA C. SANCHETI UGBS
ASHISH DAVE R. P. AGARWAL MANOJ KUMAR SINGH Managing Director
Paitner Cornpany Secrelary H.L. PANDEY Executive Director

Mumbai, 30th January, 2021

Mumbai, 30th January, 2021
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ANNUAL REPORT 2019-2020

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

COMPANY INFORMATION

Gannon Dunkerley & Co., Limited (the ‘Company’) is a closely held Public Limited Company domiciled in India
and incorporated on 11th March, 1924 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India (CIN:
U51109MH1924PLC001107). The Company is engaged in the execution of large construction contracts involving
engineering, procurement and construction (EPC) projects. The registered office of the Company is located at New
Fxcelsiar Building, 3rd Floor, A. K. Nayak Marg, Fort, Mumbai—400 001,

The standalone financial statemenls (‘he [inancial statements”) were authorized for issue in accordance with the
resolution of the Board of Directors on 30th January, 2021.

1
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BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

Basis of preparation and measurement:

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company (also called
standalone financial statements) prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS’) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financlal statements. All assets and
liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle
and other critcria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule |1l to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company
adopts operating cycle based on the project period and accordingly, all project related assets and
liabilitics arc classified into current and non-current. Other than project related assets and liabilities, 12
months period is considered as normal operating cycle.

The Company'’s financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees (%) which is also the company’s
functional currency, and all values are rounded to the nearestlacs except otherwise indicated.

Significant accounting policies:
a. Currentand Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current
classification. Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

« lItis expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

« ltis cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
atleast 12 months after the reporting date ;

« ltis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period;

« Allotherliabilities are classified as non-current;

« Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only.

b. Keyaccountingestimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS, requires the management to make estimates and assumptions in the
application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results
of operation during the reported period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s
best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates which
are recognised in the period in which they are determined.



GANNON DUNKERLEY & CO_, LTD.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes
are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimates and judgments are regularly revisited. Estimates are hased on historical experience and
other factors, including futuristic reasonable information that may have a financial impact on the
Company.

c. Property, plantand equipment

(i) Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost of acquisition including attributable
interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/installation of the assets less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to lhe slalement ol prolil and loss as incurred.

(i) The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements,
either on disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are
recognisedin the statement of profitand loss.

(iv) Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under
development and not ready for their intended use, are carried at cost. Cost includes related
acquisition expenses, construction cost, related borrowing cost and other direct expenditure.

(v) The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment on written down value method over
the estimated useful life prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 from the date the
assets are ready for intended use after considering the residual value.

(vi) Intangible assets comprise of implementation cost for software and other application software
acquired/developed for in-house use. These assets are stated at cost, only when itis probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairmentlosses, if any.

(vii) ltems of stores and spares that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Otherwise, such items are classified
as inventories.

d. Investmentproperties

(a) Property which is held for long-term rental or for capital appreciation or both is classified as
Investment Property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

(b)  Investment properties currently comprise of building.

(c) Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

e. Investments and financlal assets

(i)

(i)

Investments in Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

Investments in subsidiarics and joint ventures are recognieed at cost and not adjusted to fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Cost represents amount paid for acquisition of the
said investments.

The Company assesses al the end of each reporting period, if there is any indication that the
said investments may be impaired. If so, the Company estimates the recoverable value of the
investments and provides for impairment, if any, i.e. the deficit in the recoverable value over
cost.

Otherinvestments and financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of financial assets
which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction costs are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. In other cases, the transaction costs are attributed
to the acquisition value of financial asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified measured at -

- amortised cost
- fairvalue through profitand loss (FVTPL)
- fairvalue through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial asset. Where the entity has transferred the asset, the Company
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. In such cases, financial asset is derecognised.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company generally applies the expected credit loss ("TECL")
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk
exposures. The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach does not require the Company to track
changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on
other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has
been a significantincrease in the credit risk since initial recognition.

f. Inventories

(i)

(ii)

Raw materials, construction materials and stores and spares are valued at weighted average
costincluding all charges in bringing the materials to the present location.

Work -in-progress is valued on percentage completion method, based on the stage of
completion at the reporting date, taking into account the contractual price and revision thereto
by estimating total revenue including claims/variations and total cost till completion of the
contract.
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(iii) Finished and traded goods are valued al lhe cost or net realizable value, whicheveris lower.

(iv) Obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are written off/valued at net realisable value
during the year as per policy consistently followed by the Company.

g. Cashand cashequivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises of balance with banks and cash on hand
and short term deposits with an original maturity of three month or less, which are subject to
insignificant risks of changes in value.

h. Tradereceivables

Areceivable is classified as a trade receivable if itis in respect of the amount due on account of goods
sold or services rendered in the normal course of business. Trade receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured net of any expected credit losses.

i. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that cvidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the
proceeds received, nel of direct issue costs.

j-  Financial liabilitics

(I) Flnanclal liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost
unless atinitial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profitand loss.

(i) Financial liabilities are subscquently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit and loss are
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

(iii) Financialliabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

k. Trade payables

Apayable is classified as a trade payable if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods
purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent
liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year which
are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually settled as per the payment terms. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period.

I.  Revenuerecognition (refer note no. 40)

(i)  Revenue from construction contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity. The Company follows the percentage completion method, based on the
stage of completion at the reporting date, taking into account the contractual price and revision
thereto by estimating total revenue including claims/variations and total cost till completion of
the contract. While recognising the revenue, an appropriate charge for reasonable factors,
which have bearing on the income, are duly considered.
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n.

(i

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefit will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably be measured and significant
risk and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, which is generally coincides with
dispatch of goods. Revenue from product sales are shown as net discounts.

Claims are accounted as income in the period of acceptance by the client or evidence of
acceptance received.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

Revenue in respectof other income is recognised onaccrual basis. However, where the
ultimate collection of the same lacks reasonable certainty, revenue recognition is postponed to
the extent of uncertainty.

. Foreign currency transactions

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of primary
economic environment in which the company operates (“the functional currency”). The
financial statements are presentedin Indian Rupee (%), which is the company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are Initlally recorded in the reporting currency al foreign
exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items of current assets and current liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
reported using the closing rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried in
terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction. The gain or loss on decrease/increase in reporting currency due
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Foreign branches functional currency is other than reporting currency of the Company. Foreign
branch financial statements are translated into reporting currency of the Company using the
year end closing rate for translation of assets and liabilities and average rate for translation of
income and expenses. All resulting exchange rate differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income till the disposal of the netinvestment.

The gain or loss on decrease/increase in reporting currency due to fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Employee benefit expenses

(i)

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund, employees' state
insurance, labour welfare fund etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. These
benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as the Company has no further
obligations beyond the monthly contributions.
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(i) The Company provides for gratuity which is a defined benefit plan, the liabilities of which are
determined based on valuations, as at the reporting date, made by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, in respect of gratuity are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is not
reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is
recognised in the atatement of profit and loss in the year of plan amendment ar curtailment
The classification of the Company’s obligation into current and non-current Is as per the
actuarial valuation report.

(iiiy The Company has opted for not to provide for the liability in respect of the leave encashment
benefits to the employees and the same are accounted tor as and when paid. This accounting
policy is, however, not in accordance with the provisions of the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS)-19"Employee Benefits”.

0. Leases
Company as lessee

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
astraight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred In negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
termon the same basis as rental income.

p. Borrowingcosts

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Also, the Effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs.
Borrowing costs relating to acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset which takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are added to the cost of such asset to the
extentthey relate to the period till such assets are ready to be putto use. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they occur.

q. Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the deferred tax during the year. Currentand
deferred taxes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive Income or direclly in equity,
respectively.

Current income tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for
allowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income TaxAct, 1961. Currentincome tax assets
and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
aulhorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financlal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxabla temparary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is prabable that futiire taxahle protits will be available against which
they can be used. In case of uncertainty of reversal of the deferred tax assets or when it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the foreseeable future, deferred tax assets,
as amatter of prudence, are not recognised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed at each reporting date and measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabllities.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation, legal or constructive, as a result
of past events that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimale can be made of
the amount of obligation.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events,
whose existencc would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Impairment of non financial assets

As at each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial
asset may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss
recognised in the previous periods. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company determines the recoverable amount and impairment loss is
recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings Per Share

(i) Basicearnings pershareis computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

(iiy For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the perlod Is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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u.

Indirect taxes

Purchased of goods and fixed assets are accounted for net of GST input credits. Custom duty paid on
import of materials is dealt with in respective material accounts.

Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for
issue.

Offsetting instruments

Financial assets and liabillties are offset and the net amount reported in lhe balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Segment reporting

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
operating decision makers. The decision makers regularly monitor and reviews the operating result
of the whole Company. The aclivities of the Company primarily falls under a single segment of
“Engineering and Construction” in accordance with the Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Note 2

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(T inlacs)

Land . : Boat
Particalars Owned Leased Buildings E:l:?:;int quifgr(;eent :grl::tuurgz Vehicles Mo;g::hto Total
Gross Carrying Value
(at deemed cost)
As at 31st March, 2018 ............... 1,083.54 5.51 9,716.60 50,030.74 1,128.70 43535 3,623.93 1,198.82 67,223.19
Additions - - 1,151.26 3,941.26 32.06 0.42 75.20 - 5,200.20
Disposals .... B - - (328.34) - (0.63) (140.42) - (469.39)
As at 31st March, 2019 .. 1,083.54 5.51 10,867.86 53,643.66 1,160.76 43514 3,558.71 1,198.82 71,954.00
Additions - - - 781.37 27.93 0.57 12.64 - 822.51
Transfer .. - (5.51) - - - - - - (5.51)
Disposals (298.89) - (462.23)  (1,878.40) (9.75) - (142.48) - (2,791.75)
As at 31st March, 2020 ................ 784.65 - 10,405.63 52,546.63 1,178.94 435.71 3,428.87 1,198.82 69,979.25
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31st March, 2018 .. - 2.02 3,509.73 38,226.46 1,031.64 397.22 2,752.07 962.85 46,881.99
Depreciation charged - 0.06 418.52 3,181.54 42.18 7.22 271.52 49.06 3,970.08
Bispasals s B - - (201.25) (0.05)  (0.63) (136.02) - (337.95)
As at 31st March, 2019 .. - 2.08 3,928.25 41,206.74 1,073.77 403.80 2,887.57 1.011.91 50,51412
Depreciation charged - - 409.55 2,852.51 30.66 3.63 184.92 38.88 3,520.13
Transfer ...... - (2.08) - - - % s = (2.08)
Disposals .... = : (1976)  (1,277.35) (9.54) - (133.66) - (1,440.31)
As at 31st March, 2020 ................ - - 4,318.04 42,781.90 1,094.88 407.43  2,938.83 1,050.77 52,591.86
Net Carrying Value
As at 31st March, 2019 1,083.54 3.44 6,939.61 12,436.91 86.99 31.34 671.14 186.90 21,439.88
As at 31st March, 2020 784.65 - 6,087.59 9,764.73 84.08 28.28 490.04 148.05 17,307.48
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Note 3

»INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 7 ) ] ) (Zinlacs)
Particulars Building Total
Gross Carrying Value
As At 1st APFil; 2018..co:uvmmmmsmamm s o e s s e 17.63 17.63
ALAIOHS MEANETEF o T ST - -
DISPOSAIS oottt e - -
As at 31st March, 2079 ... 17.63 17.63
AAIIONS o - -
DISPOSAIS .ottt - -
As:at 31st March; 2020 .u..ooosisvrssssmsivamsssmissssm i 17.63 _17.63
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1st April, 2018 ..o 16.75 16.75
Depreciation charged/transfer .... - -
Disposals ......ccccooviiiiee - R
As at 31st March, 2019 ... 16.75 16.75
Deprociation harged ..:.vssssmmssmmmmmsmosmmisasms st s - -
DISPOSAIS. iussucsusmeppmpassenssmmeapmessmriasssasmmmess s sy oo s S e SN ST se s - -
As at 31st March, 2020 ... 16.75 16.75
Net Carrying Value
As at 1St APTil, 2018 ..o 0.88 0.88
As at 31st March; 20719 ..o e s i 0.88 0.88
As at 31st March, 2020 ........coouesmms oo smmsamsersm s ivsmisi s 0.88 0.88

Note: Investment property has been carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation as at 1st April, 2016, as the cost and
depreciation determined under the previous GAAP.

(i) Amountrecognised in Profit or Loss for Investment Properties

 inlacs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Rental Income 3.50 3.50
Direct Operating Expenses - -
Gain from Investment Properties Before Depreciation 3.50 3.50
Depreciation = —_—
Gain from Investment Properties 3.50 3.50

(ii) Contractual Obligations

There are no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property.
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Note 4
RIGHT TO USE OF ASSETS

(Zinlacs)

Particulars i Land ~ Total
Gross Carrying Value
As at 31st March, 2019 ... 5.51 5.51
7Y [ [1{[o] g [ FO N T e oo S SO et e P AR e - -
DISPOBAIS: s cossnuvssnsaupmommsemoresssvn s saos s sy maesmsaevsssainis i Fias P v TGS b B - -
As at 31st March, 2020 ..............coooiiiieiii e 5.51 5.51
Accumulated Depreciation.
As at 31t March, 2019 ... 2.08 2.08
Depreciation charged .......... 0.06 0.08
DiSPOSalS ivsivesisssinismssmssaness - -
As at 31st March, 2020 214 214
Net Carrying Value
As at 31st March, 2020 ...............c..oooiiiiiiiiecceec e s 3.37 3.37
Note 5
INTANGIBLE ASSETS - 7 zinlacs
Particulars Computer Software Total
Gross Carrying Value (at deemed cost) .
As at 31st March, 2018 86.99 86.99
AdItIONS ..o 11.82 11.82
DISPOSAIS: simsmsusssssssimmimvimrimms i siossessmsinoiee i i vy s AT s TS s - -
AS at: 315t March, 2019 ..ot 98.81 98.81
020 [o (o] [N U OSS VRS 1.26 1.26
DISPOSAIS ...t e s - -
As at 31st March, 2020 ..................ccoooiiiiie e 100.07 100.07
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31st March; 2018 ..........cvismsnmsimasssorsmssmssmsmmsmis ey s e 78.86 78.86
B = ToT = oTF=1 (Lo ot F= o = 4.15 4.15
[ o To Y= |- - -
As at 31st March, 2019 83.01 83.01
Depreciation charged ............. 7.31 7.31
Disposals ......cccocvevvvieiiineennns - -
As at 31st March, 2020 ............... 90.32 90.32
Net Carrying Value
As at 31st March, 2019 ... 15.80 15.80
As at 31st March, 2020 ..............ccccoooiiiiiiee e 9.75 9.75
Intangible Assets Under Development
As at31st March, 2019 ... 1,393.62 1,393.62
As at 318t March; 2020 ;... samsssimsen s 55w 1,393.62 1,393.62
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Note 6
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT

{Tinlacs)

Particulars

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

a. Investments valued at deemed cost, fully paid-up

Investments in Joint Ventures in India
GOCL - CEPL L e e ss e s 0.65
Investments in Joint Ventures outside India
Gannon Dunkerley Co., LLC-UAE ..o 18.75
147 Equity Shares of Dhs. 1,000 each fully paid-up
Gannon Dunkerley General Contracting Co., LLC -UAE ... -
Nil (73) Equity Shares of Dhs. 1,000 each fully paid-up
Gannon Dunkerley Guif Confracting Co., LLC, Doba ..o -
Nil (98) Equity Shares of QR 1,000 each fully paid-up —
18.75
b. Investments in Equity Shares in others carried at Fair Value through OCI, fully paid-up
Graur & Well (IJ Limited .. -
Nil {42,00,750) Equity Shares of ¥ 1 each fully paid-up
Gannon Dunkerley Finance Limited ..o 4.75
47 500 Equity Shares of 10 each fully paid-up
Gannon Dunkerley Realty Limited ..o 18.41
12,30,000 Equity Shares of 210 each fully paid-up
23.16
c. Investments in others carried at Fair Value through Profit & Loss , fully paid-up )
BSL Saving Fund - Growtht ... B
Investment in 30,000,000 Preference Shares of 10 each fully paid-up in
Morarka Organic Foods Pvt. Limited ... 3,000.00
Investment in Bonds of Sardar Sarovar Nigam Limited ......................... 30.00
{pledged against contracts/various authorities)
Investment in Jewelleries ... 320.00
3,350.00
Total Non-Current Investments ... ... 3,618.93
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Inyestments in Subsidiaries outside India

Investments in Subsidiaries in India

Khagra Joydev Resources Private Limited

5,100 Equity Shares of T 10 each fully paid-up ... 0.51
139,68,900 Equlty Shares of ¥ 1.50 1) each partly paid-up ............... 209.53
210.04

Gannen Dunkerley & Co., Limited FZE - Sharjah ..o 16.33
1 Equity Share of Dhs. 1,50,000 each fully paid-up

Gannon Dunkerley Middie East WLL - Bahrain ..o, -
Nil (2,000) Equity Shares of Bhd. 100 each fully paid-up

16.33

0.51
209,53

210.04

16.33

21211

228.44

0.65

18.75

7.84

17.04

43.63

2,066.77

475

18.41

2,089.93

465.21

3,000.00

30.00

320.00

3,815.21

6,387.90
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Note 7
LOANS

(Rinlacs)

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Loatis1G \SUDSIHIANES .ommmummmummessssmmisnismamsmss
Loans to Joint Ventures & Associates
Loans to Bodies Corporate ..........cccoceeivivieieiie e
EmPIoyee LOANS ..ot
OtherLO@ANnS ......ocoiiiiiieiiiie et

Non-Current Current

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Particulars of loan and advances in the nature of loans to Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates:

Name of the entity

Subsidiaries:

Gannon Dunkerley & Co., Limited FZE .....
Gannon Dunkerley Middle East WLL ...............
Khagra Joydev Resources Private Limited

Joint Ventures & Associates:

Gannon Dunkerley Co., LLC ......c.oooiiiiiiiiece e
Gannon Dunkerley General Contracting Co., LLC
Gannon Dunkerley - MIS Shivam ...........ccccoviiiine

Gannon Dunkerley - Krishna .........cccooeviiieiieiiiiccie e
Gannon Dunkerley - CEPL ..o
Gannon Dunkerley - EMIT ...........
Gannon Dunkerley - SIL- FLCL .........cceevvnne.
Gannon Dunkerley Gulf Contracting Co., LLC ..........cc..ceeeennen.

Note 8
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Particulars

A

lerm Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months* .............
Claiii RECEIVEDIES crumssmvossssimsmmimmmmeniosssys s wrsmas s
Interest Receivables

Total Other Financial Assets .......................

* under lien with Banks and Others

859.92 580.28 - 169.42
2,850.84 3,153.52 - 723.20
7,823.98 - 46,777.64  64,561.10

6.51 20.24 205.38 291.64

N - 3,663.64 4,215.65
11,541.25 3,754.04 50,646.66 69,961.01

B (Xin lacs)

Maximum balance outstanding

Outstanding balances during the year

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

646.96 574.29 646.96 574.29

- 5.99 - 5.99

212.96 169.42 212.96 169.42
859.92 749.70

2,850.84 2,528.62 2,850.84 2,528.62

- 61.78 - 61.78

- 144.89 - 144.89

- 632.53 = 632.53

= 1.16 - 1.16

- 27.22 - 27.22

- 62.28 = 62.28

- 418.23 - 418.23
2,850.84 3,876.71

(Zinlacs)

Non-Current Current

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019

913.83 884.72 B -

4,306.52 - - =
54.21 54.21 3.08 2.18
5,354.36 938.93 3.08 218
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Note 9
OTHER ASSETS @ in lacs
Non-Current Current
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Trade Advances to Suppliers, Sub-contractors and Others .....
Security DEpOsils cueiiimmssrsmmmsimis sarsisnisismsn e
Gratuity FUNA ..o
Prepaid EXPENSES ...,
Input Credit Receivables
OINOFAAVANGES uvsnmswsanssnsssnsmnss s s s uamsmsass s sagsussgs ey

Note 10
INVENTORIES

Particulars

StOres & SPArES ...ooiiiiiiiieiii et
Stock-in-Trade
Raw Materlals
Finished GOOdS .......oeieiuiieiieeieiee e
Goods-in-Transit ....
WOrK-iN-ProgreSs ....c.cooviiiioiiiiiii it

Note 11
TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note 12
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

Balances with Banks
Short Term Deposits *
Cashon HanNd ..........oooiiiii e,

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents ....

* T 818.49 lacs under lien with Banks and Others
Note 13 7
OTHER BANK BALANCES

Particulars

Deposits with maturity more than 3 months ...
Unclaimed Dividend Accounts .............ccovun.
Balances in Current Accounts * ........c.ocooeiiiiiiiieiiee e

Total Other Bank Balances ...............

* Balances with Banks having restriction on repatriation.
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= = 20,959.39 17,562.27
11,612.56 11,452.42 702.94 1,130.72
678.81 768.25 - -

- 6.48 20.23 80.77

- = 12,107.97 11,218.63

= & 190.41 297.12

12,291.37  12,227.15 33,980.94  30,289.51
) (X in lacs)

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

100.67 12.40

6,845.69 6,846.00

81.29 103.05

327.11 31414

108.91 362.3/

43,22515  42,635.46

50,688.82 50,273.42
(X inlacs)

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

1,02,832.59 1,13,510.13

(5,913.56)

(9,735.00)

96,919.03 1,03,775.13

(X inlacs)

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

8,483.22 2,178.29

1,5628.63 9.46

2,820.23 2,682.32

12,832.08 4,870.07
(X inlacs)

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

- 13.31
0.74 3.62
8,636.53  8,258.22
8,637.27  8,275.15
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Note 14
INCOME TAX B B - R inlacs)
Particulars st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
The following table provides the details of Inoomo Tax Aeeets and Liabilities:
INCOME TAX ASSELS ...ouvuvieeceiieet ettt eiee et ee sttt essaes st b eres s s et ananans 11,125.31 12,501.39
Current Incoffie Tax Liabilifies: quwmimmummammmmnmmnams g 2,465.74 5,627.47
Net Balance ..............ccoooveveeeiieeeereee e 8,659.57 6,873.92

The gross movement in the Current Tax Asset / (Liability)

Net Current Income Tax Asset at the beginning .........c..o.ccoooveoveieviennan. 6,873.92 6,795.57
Income Tax Paid (Net of REfUNAS) ........cevviviieeeieieieeeieveeeees e 1,058.54 78.35
Current Income Tax EXPense ..........cccoeveecvenn... 727.11 s
Income Tax on Other Comprehensive Income = =

Net Current Incomu Tax Assct at the end ......... 8,659.57 6,873.92
Note 15
EQUITY SHARE CAPITALi B B ) (% in lacs)
Particulars J1st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Authorised
1,80,00,000 Equity Shares of T 10 €ach ..........ccoocvvvviiiieieeecececee 1,800.00 1,800.00
2,00,000 Preference Shares of T 100 €aCh .........ccooveeeioiiiiciiceie e 200.00 200.00

2,000.00 _ 2,000.00

Issucd, Subscribed and Paid-up
2,688,000 Equity Shares of 210 each fully Paid-Up ..............eveerereereeernens 268.80 268.80

Total Equity Share Capital .................................. 268.80 268.80

Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Number % of holding  Number % of holding

Name of Shareholder

Ramkumar Morarka & Sons Private Limited ..............c.............. 11,33,832 4218 11,33,832 4218

Gannon Dunkerley Holdings Private Limited 6,17,120 22.96 6,17,120 22.96
United India Agencies Private Limited .............ccoccoeeiiiiiinn, 6,05,220 22.52 6,05,220 22.52
Shri Kamal M. Morarka ..........ccccccoviiiiiinieeiieieecee e 3,03,954 11.31 3,03,954 11.31

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a face value of ¥ 10 each ranking pari pasu in all respect including voting rights and
entitlement to dividend. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per share. Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors and
approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting is paid to the shareholders.

Note 16

OTHER EQUITY R inlacs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
General Reserve :

Balance at the beginning of the Year ... 65,000.00 65,000.00
Add: Transferred from Retained Earnings =

Balance atthe end of the Year ............ccoocoiiiiiiiiiiiii 65,000.00 65,000.00
Retained Earnings :
Balance at the beginning of the Year ... (14,788.85) 37.86
Profit &:(Loss)for B YEaT w.uumsrmmmmmsrsmosssmsnsnsss s st s as svassnss s s s (6,269.02) (14,826.71)
Appropriations :

Transfer to General RESEIVE .............ccocciiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e - -

Balance atthe end of the Year ..........coooviiviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e (21,057.87) (14,788.85)

Other Components of Equity :

Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plans (Net of Tax) .........coooiciiiiiienieienivinnnnns 425.34 467.85

Exchange Differences on Foreign Currency Translation of Foreign Operations ........ (1'63_5'31) (11’0;7%6;7)

Gains on Investments in Equity INStruments .............cocoov v (1.209.97) 1:398:88
Total Other Equity ........ccccovievreeieie 42,732.16 51,610.03
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General Reserve: The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company before declaring
dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer to
general reserve is not required under Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less transfers ta
general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve: Exchange difference on translation of long term monetary asset is
accumulated in separate reserve within equity.

Gain/{Loss) on Investment in Equity Instruments: The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair
value of certain investments in equity securities in OCI These changes are accumulated within the FVTOCI equity
investment reserve within equity. The Company transfers amount from this reserve o retained earning when the
relevant equity securities are derecognised.

Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value of Defined Benefit Plans: The Company has recognised re-measurement
gains/{loss) on defined benefit plans in OCI. These changes are accumalated within the OCl reserve within other
equity. The Company transfers amount from this reserve to retained earning when the relevant obligations are
derecognised.

Note 17
BORROWINGS £ in lacs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Secured:

Term Loans from Banks*
Term Loans from Others*®
Hire Purchase Finance™

Working Capital Finance from Banks™

1,049.19 750.00 - -
1,142.44 5,606.73 - -
968.26 6,822.81 - -

- - 6743477 68,318.03

3,158.88  13,178.54 6743477 ©68318.03

*Non-Current Borrowings aggregatingto ¥ 1,092.29 lacs are classified as NPA by the lenders.
** Working Capital Finance from Banks is classified as NPA by the lenders. Total amount overdue for repayments
T21,196.64 lacs ’
Unsecured:
Term Loans from Banks ..o - - - -
Term Loans from Related Parties - - 498.29 654.02
Inter Coprporate LOANS ..ot esee s - - 255.25 1,237.80

- - 753.54 1,891.62

Total Borrowings ... 3,158.88 13,179.54 68,188.31 70,209.65

Note: Term loans and working capital finance from banks and financial institutions are secured by hypothecation of
all present & future inventories, book debts, tangible current assets, and morigages of specified properties. Hire
purchase finance is against hypothecation of specific assets. Term loan of SB| of ¥ 1,235.80 lacs is secured against
properties and corporate guarantee provided by M/s, Virat Infra Projects Pvt. Ltd. and LK. Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.

Note 18
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (T inacs)
Non-Current Current

Particulars I1st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 3ist March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Non-Current: ‘
Current maturities of Long Term Debt ™ ... - 35,082.28 12,857 .97
Interest accrued and due on Borrowings - - 4,647.79 153.34
Payable towards Services rendsred ........... 2,022.80 2.330.17
Unclaimed Dividend ..., - - 3.66 4.51
* includes amount of T 29,165.05 lacs classified as NPA by the

lenders. Amount in default and overdue for repayments

T 4,769.26 lacs.

Total Other Financial Liabilities ........ - - 41,756.53 15,345.99
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Note 19
PROVISIONS - - — _ (Rinlacs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars - st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
L a1 o g o] gl o L — - - 118.49 450.27
Engingers’ COMMISSION .ovismvisimmsummsmsmsmsmissnssmssissamsissy - - 33.02 55.71
Total Provisions...............cccveeiiiinin, - - 151.51 505.98
Note 20
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES ~ Rinlacs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Deferred Tax Llabllities / (Assets)
On account of timing differences in :
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment .................. (1,038.23) (950.84)
Carry Forward of Bussiness Loss (1,797.88) (2,039.43)
Retention Money on Contracts ..........cc...ccceiiiiinniceinn, 5,504.30 8,372.75
Provision for Doubtful Debts ... (2,066.43) (3,401.79)
Disallowances u/s 43B of the Income Tax Act and Others. (4,673.03) (1,411.88)
Total Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) .... (4,071.27) 568.81

Note: Deferred tax is worked out based on the provisional income tax working and other information prepared by the
management.

Note 21
OTHER LIABILITIES i
(X inlacs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars ) 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Advances from Customers ..........cccceccoeeiiiieiiiciiieeeee e % = 67,549.67 74,361.46
Statutory Liabilities ... - = 8,000.29 7,201.13
Other Liabilities .........coccoiiiiiiieiis e - - 12,741.65 7,755.54

- - 88,291.61 89,318.13

Note 22
TRADE PAYABLES @ in lacs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Trade Payables .......cccocccoviiiiiiieie e s - 73,490.84 79,479.48

Total Trade Payables - " 73,490.84 79,479.48

The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence, disclosures relating to the amounts unpaid as at the year end
together with interest paid/payable under the Act have not been given.

Note 23

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Z inlacs)
Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
WOTK BIllS .ot 1,60,821.82 1,68,458.20
Sales:

Finished Goods ........cccvoiiiiiiiiii et 1,465.19 1,979.71
Sales of Sevices and Commisssion Income 99.72 200.56
Other'Operating INCOME cuvpwemmurmmmamsms s 976.26 449.03

Total Revenue from Operations ........ 1,63,362.99 1,71,087.50
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Note 24
OTHER INCOME

Particulars

Interest Receipts
Dividend Receipts
Insurance Claim Receipts..................
Gains on Exchange Fluctuations
Lease Rent ReceIptS ........ccocvveviriciiiieiiieiciee e
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (Net)
Profit on Sale of Investments (Net) ......c...oocoovericciiiiine

Gain on Valuation of Mutual Fund Measured at Fair Value .............c.c..........
Sundry Balance Written Back (Net) ..o
MISCEIANEOUS: INCOMIS wxvusisunsmsessssnssmssnssamsirnssnm v avs s s s i s

(T inlacs)

Note 25
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars

Raw Materials Consumed :
OPENING STOCK ..eviiriieert ettt
Add: PUICRASES ...t a e

Less: ClosSing SOCK :quwsnummmmmisenmsmmmsvsmimmie s s s e

Total Cost of Materials Consumed ......................

Note 26
OPERATING CHARGES

Particulars

Freight, Duty, Clearing and Forwarding Charges .........ccccccccovveiiniriiicnnaenns
Sub-contracts, Materials and Labour Charges ...........cc.ccovovivniiiieiccnn
Power and FUEI ........c.ooieiieiiie e
Rates and Taxes .........cccoocevvvvieriiniciinnnn,
Repairs to Machinery and Hire Charges
Loss of Publication Divisions and Joint Ventures (refer note no. 42)............

Total Operating Charges ..............c.ccccveiveeieniennns

Note 27
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES

Particulars

Closing Stock :
WOrK-iN-PTOGTESS uscisuismismsm isiassrimiss s sasmm sansm it 35555 550 s a5 593
FINIShed GOOAS ... ..oooiiveiiiiee st
StOCK-IN-TrAA@ ..ot
Less : Opening Stock
WOrk-iN-PrOGreSS s ssusimusisrivssisesmssnmerto s samin i 45 15 s ipsass wa v insnenns
Finished Goods
StOCK-IN-TradE ...c.oviiieeee et

36

2019-2020 2018-2019

2,114.58 1,107.46

- 25.20
13.05 142.76

e 137.65
3.50 3.50
557.43 8.38
1,742.55 2843
= 4.79
1,189.74 556.67
71.09 448.07

5,691.94 2,462.91

(X in lacs)

2019-2020 2018-2019

103.05 44.82
988.98 1,483.09
1,092.03 1,527.91
(81.29) (103.05)

1,010.74 1,424.86

(T inlacs)
2019-2020 2018-2019

462.67 1,235.48
1,30,714.65 1,36,394.89
3,048.26 4,249.89

401.48 184.19
2,650.04 2,831.35
- 405.28

1,37,277.10 1,45,301.08

(T In lacs)

2019-2020 2018-2019

4322515  42,635.46
327.11 314.14
6,845.69 6,846.00
50,397.95  49,795.60

42,635.46 45,498.22
314.14 340.49
6,846.00 6,846.00
49,795.60 52,684.71

(602.35) 2,889.11
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Note 28
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES % inlacs)
Particulars , 2019-2020 2018-2019
Salaries, Bonus, Commission and Service Charges .............occcoeivviieennn, 9,955.87 10,075.84
Directors REMUNBIANON: :uussisvimesmsmmmmmssmmsenssssmms st va e 290.91 292.41
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Welfare Funds .........cccccccovvienenn. 1,079.42 1,350.03
Staff Welfare EXPENSES .......ccoociiiiiee e 500.43 1,045.45
Total Employee Benefit Expenses ...................... 11,826.63  12,763.73

Note 29
FINANCE COSTS

(¥ inlacs)

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
Interest :
BANKS ©.oiveiiiieict it e ettt e 10,196.48 8,084.46
FTeToT 0ol = e 0.71 5.20
OUNETS soonrmmmersinmss s i b R R T S TR s o S S TS 4,216.73 3,454.94
14,413.92 11,544 .60
Financial expenses on Measurement of LOANS ..........cccccoveeeiiiieeceiiineeeninns 4914.72 -
Other Borrowing COStS .......ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiei et 29.16 184.32
Total Finance Costs .............cccvvvvveveeeieeecececiiiins 19,357.80 11,728.92
Note 30 N
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES (T inlacs)
Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
Depreciation on Tangible ASSets ..........cooceiiiiiiiiiiic e 3,520.13 3,970.01
Depreciation on Intangible ASSets .........cccvvciieeiviiciiiiie e e 7.31 4.15
Amortisation of Leasehold Land ...............coociiiiiiiiiiiee e 0.06 0.06
Total Depreciation and Amortisation .................. 3,527.50 3,974.22
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Note 31
OTHER EXPENSES

® inlacs)

Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
Stationery, Postage, Telephone and Advertisement ...............ccccoovveveeiinnne 389.14 374.62
Office Rent, Restoration and Maintenance Expenses 1,587.19 1,715.85
Travelling and Conveyance EXPenses ........cccocvvevvivvrriiieneniens 725.13 1,258.71
VEhICIE EXPENSES ...vviiiiiiiiiii et eee ettt e e e e e ns 967.43 1,161.98
INSUraNCE PrEMIUMS ...c.viiiiiiiit et s e 540.21 532.19
Brokerage, Commission and Consultancy Fees ...... 66.46 161.56
Repairs to Buildings & Others ... 269.35 264.36
Legal and Professional FEES .........cccueiririiiiiiieiicnie et esmre e s 991.83 1,615.74
Corporate Social Responsibility EXpENSES ...........cccooeviiviiiiiieeee e 10.00 90.00
DONAtIONS ™ <. 164.71 955.70
Bad Debts and Provision for Doubtful Advances .........cc.cccoovvvevvivviiccvennnnnn, 799.11 4,304.52
Electricity: CRarges s s immmissiness s s s 292.63 358.50
Payment to Auditors SR 27.66 27.29
Business Promotion EXPENSES .......cccoviiiiiiiiieeiiieiie e 33.08 204.30
Directors Sitting Fees 1.60 1.80
Rates & Taxes .............. 272.43 207.03
Liquidated Damages 527.92 540.27
Loss on Exchange FIUctuations ...........ccocvveeiiiiiiieieciiee e, 6.53 -
Miscellaneous EXPENSES .....ovviviviiiiiii it 1,371.30 3,283.13
Total Other EXpenses ...........ccooceeevveiivveiineiinenns 9,043.71 17,057.55
*includes donations to political parties 150.00 245.00
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the Year ......... - 114.46
Amount spent in cash during the Year
(i) Construction/Acquisition of any ASSEt ............cccecveviiiiiieeiiie e - -
(if) On purposes other than (i) @bOVE .........cccecviiiviciiiiie e 10.00 90.00
10.00 90.00
Payments to Auditors
AUIE FEES .ottt se et ettt 21.65 20.55
Tax Audit Fees .......... 5.10 4.61
Other Services .......... ; 0.25 1.33
Reimursement of Expens 0.66 0.80
27.66 27.29
Note 32
EARNING PER SHARE
Particulars 2019-2020 2018-2019
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (Tin 1aCS) .......cocoooiviiiiiiie e (6,269.02) (14,826.71)
Weighted Average Number of Shares (NOS.) ......ccccooveeiicniiiiinie e 26,88,000 26,88,000
Earnings Per Share (Basic and Diluted) ¥ (233.22) (551.59)
Face Value Per Shar€@ T .........c.cooooiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevevens oot 10.00 10.00
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Note 33
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

i. Financial Instruments by Catergory ® inlacs)
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Pailiculars —
FVPL  FVOCI  Amortised Cost FVPL  FVOCI  Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments
Equity Shares (quoted) . . .. - - - - 2,066.77 -
Equity Shares (Unquoted) .............. - 23.16 - - 23.16 -
in Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures... - - 24577 - - 482.76
11 (UF=| [T 0§ (o [FORO——————————— - - - 465.21 - -
Preference Shares .........c.ccccceeveennn. 3,000.00 - - 3,000.00 - -
Bonds & Others .........ccoooveeeiineeenn. 350.00 - - 350.00 - -
Trade Receivables ......c.ccccooeovviiciininnn, - - 96,919.03 - - 1,03,775.13
Loans Non - Current ............cocovevvennen. - - 11,541.25 - - 3,754.04
| WoF-Ta Lol €10 (=] | QRmR——————————— 50,646.66 69,961.01
Other Financial Assets Non -Current.... - - 5,354.36 - - 938.93
Other Financial Assets Current ............ 3.08 2.18
Cash and Cash Equivalents ................ - - 12,832.08 - - 4,870.07
Other Bank Balances ............cccccceevee.n. - - 8,637.27 - - 8,275.15
Total Financial Assets .............. 3,350.00 23.16 1,86,179.50 3,815.21 2,089.93 1,92,059.27
Flnancial Liabilities
Borrowings
Long Term Borrowings* - - 38,242.17 - - 26,037.50
Short Tern Borrowings ........c..cccoeceene. - - 68,188.31 - - 70,209.65
Trade Payables ...z - - 73,490.84 - - 79,479.47
Other Financial Liabilities Non-Current.. - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities-Current ....... 6,674.25 2,488.02
Total Financial Liabilities.......... - - 1,86,595.57 - - 1,78,214.64

* including current maturities of Long Term Debts

ii Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which
fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used
in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the following three levels

prescribed under ind AS -113"Fair Value Measurements".

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value - Recurring Fair Value Measurements at 31st March, 2020

Particulars

Level 1

Financial Investment at FVOCI
Investment in Equity Shares (Quoted) ..
Investment in Equity Shares (Unquoted) ..

Financial Investment at FVPL
Investment in Mutual Fund ...............
Investment in Preference Shares
Investment in Bonds & Others

(T inlacs)
Level 2 Level 3 Level 4
- 23.16 23.16
- 3,000.00 3,000.00
- 350.00 350.00
- 3,373.16 3,373.16
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Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value - Recurring Fair Value Measurements at 31st March, 2019

(X inlacs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4
FInancial Investment at F'VOCI
Investment in Equity Shares (quoted).. 2,066.77 - - 2,066.77
Investment In Equity Shares (unquoted) .. - - 23.16 23.16
Financiall Investment at FVPL
Investment in Mutual Fund .............. 465.21 - - 465.21
Investment in Preference Shares .... - - 3,000.00 3,000.00
Investment in Bonds & Others ......... - - 350.00 350.00
Total i 2,531.98 - 3,373.16 5,905.14

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices in active markets. Quotes
would includes rates/values/valuation references published periodically by stock exchanges on basis of which
trades take place in alinked or unliked active market. This includes traded bonds and mutual funds, as the case may
be.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data (either directly as prices or indirectly
derived from prices) and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value aninstrument are observable, the instrumentisincludedin level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contigent consideration and indetermination asset included in
level 3.

Note 34
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, Credit ratings, Aging Diversification of counter parties,
financial assets and trade receivables analysis and Credit investment limits, check on counter
evaluation parties basis credit rating and

number of overdue days

Liquidity Risk | Borrowings, trade payables and Maturity analysis Maintaining sufficient cash/cash
other liabilities equivalents and marketable
securities
Market Risk Financial assets and liabilities not Sensitivity analysis Constant evaluation and proper
denominated in INR risk management policies

The Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management as well as policies covering specific areas such
as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and investment of surplus liquidity.

A.Credit Risk

Creditrisk referes to the risk of a counter party default on its contractual obligation resulting into a financial loss to
the Company. The maximum exposure of the financial assets represents trade receivables, work in progress and
receivables from group companies and others.

In respect of trade receivables, the Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss
allowances for trade receivables in accordance with the excepcted credit loss (ECL) policy of the Company. The
Company regulary reviews trade receivables and necessary provisions, whenever required, are made in the
financial statements. However, in absence of the detailed age-analysis being provided, the auditors have not
been able to verify the working for the same.
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B. Liquidity Risk

Liquidily risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its commitments
associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial assets quickly at
closetoits fair value.

The Company, to the best extent possible, attempts to manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate liquid
assets and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forcast and actual cash flows and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities are as follows:

(T inlacs)
Less than or equal to Morc than
Particulars ——_——— = s
- - one year one year Total
As on 31st March, 2020
Financial Assets :
- 3,618.93 3,618.93
50,646.66 11,541.25 62,187.92
96,919.03 - 96,919.03
Cash and Cash Equivalents ............... 12,832.08 - 12,832.08
Other Bank Balances .......................... 8,637.27 - 8,637.27
Other Financial Assets ........................ 3.08 5,354.36 5,357.44
Total Financial Assets ............... 1,69,038.13 20,514.54 1,89,552.67
Financial Liabilities :
Long Term Borrowings * ...........c.ccocee.e 35,082.28 3,159.89 38,242.17
Short Term Borrowings ..............ccovve... 68,188.31 - 68,188.31
Trade Payables 73,490.84 - 73,490.84
Other Financial Liabilities .................... 6,674.25 - 6,674.25
Total Financial Liabilities .......... 1,83,435.68 3,159.89 1,86,595.57
As on 31st March, 2019
Financial Assets :
INVESIMBNES wssmenasvesssmsmsmssassmoninpeies - 6,387.90 6,387.90
LOANS susvissmscasmmssasmmvisisii 69,961.00 3,754.04 73,715.04
Trade Receivables ....................... 1,03,775.13 - 1,03,775.13
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,870.07 - 4,870.07
Other Bank Balances ............ccccovvvvvee 8,275.15 - 8,275.15
Other Financial Assets ..........ccccccocoe. 2.18 938.93 ) 941.11
Total Financial Assets 1,86,883.54 11,080.87 1,97,964.41
Financial Liabilities:
Long Term Borrowings * ......c.cccccoveene.. 12,857.97 13,179.54 26,037.51
Short Term Borrowings ........................ 70,209.65 - 70,209.65
Trade Payables ...........c..ccocviiieiinnn, 79,479.47 - 79,479.47
Other Financial Liabilities .................... 2,488.02 - 2,488.02
Total Financial Liabilities .......... 1,65,035.11 13,179.54 1,78,214.65

*including current maturities of Long Term Debts

C. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumenl will llucluale because of
changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes.
The Company has several balances in foreign currency and consequently, the Company is exposed to foreign

exchange risk. The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and
follows established risk management policies, to the extent possible.
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a) Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company manages its
interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings, wherever possible.

b) Interest Rate Sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected
through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase/decrease In basis points Effect of profit before tax
March 31, 2020 +100 (1,064.30)

-100 1,064.30
March 31, 2019 +100 (962.47)

-100 962.47

Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each reporting period is as under:

c) Exposure in Foreign Currency - unhedged
(Respeclive Foreign Currency in lacs)

Currency 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Receivables

Taka 821.82 2,522.81
LYD 282 .41 282.41
Payables

LYD 539.71 539.71
Taka 773.84 2,481.75

d) Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

The Company is mainly exposed to changes in LYD and Taka. The below table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5%
increase or decrease in the LYD and Taka against INR, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity
analysis is prepared on the the net unhedged exposure of the Company as at reporting date. The sensitivity of 5%
represents management's assessment of reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate.

(¥ inlacs)

Particulars Currency Change in rate Effect on profit before tax

March 31, 2020 LYD +5% 669.60

' LYD 5% (669.60)
March 31, 2019 LYD +5% 702.77

LYD 5% (702.77)

March 31, 2020 Taka +5% 2.1

Taka -5% (2.11)

March 31, 2019 Taka +5% 1.68

Taka 5% (1.88)

Note 35
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company's capital management objective is to maximise the total shareholder returns by optimising cost of
capital through flexible capital structure that supports growth. Further, the Company attempts to ensure optimal
credit risk profile to maintain/enhance credit rating.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plan and long-term
strategic plans. The funding requirements are met through internal accruals and long-term/short-term borrowings.
The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profilc of the overall
debt portfolio of the Company.

However, due to the business losses for the past two years , the Company is facing difficulties to meet its obligations
for repayments of its borrowings. Consequently, certain loans have become overdue and classified by the lenders
as sub-standard.
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The following table summarises the capital of the Company:

Particulars

Note 36

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS REPRESENTS

Particulars

_ Riniacs)

As at . TS

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
1,06,430.49 96,247.15
43,000.96 51,878.84

248 1.86

_(? inlacs)

Excess liabilities written back on one time

31st March, 2020

31st March, 2019

settlement with banks and others ... 772.82 -
Note 37
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES .
(X inlacs)
No. Particulars 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019
1. Forindemnity and guarantees by banks against contracts include Advance Payment Guarantees
(APGs) aggregating to ¥ 67,920.46 lacs (Previous Year ¥ 77,246.64 lacs). The actual liability
against the APGs of ¥ 67,549.67 lacs (Previous Year T 74,221.47 lacs) is already shown in
NOE NO. 21 1,85,022.44 2,15,084.85
2. Forinland letter of CIEdiS .............ommrmmmmnnnnn e - 1,862.98
3. Guarantees given by the Company in respect of faciliies sanctioned by the bank to Other Company... 623.00 2,800.00
4. Excise, service tax and sales tax MAtERS ............cccvvvvimresssssssssiimmssssssimssssssesssssnessnsssssseee 3,415.44 3,084.64
5. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt .............ccoooooceeeveevevessrsssmssessssssssssssssssse. 42,455.22 47,288.61

Note: The above information is given as certified by the management. In absence of any audit evidence, the
Auditors have notbeen able to verify the same.

Note 38
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Funded Scheme
Gratuity

Liability for employee gratuity has been determined by an actuary, appointed for the purpose, in confirmity with the
principles set outin the Indian Accounting Standard -19, the details of which are as hereunder. The Company makes
contributions to approved gratuity fund.
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Particulars

(® inlacs)

?EtiMarch, 2020 31st March,;M_Q

Amount recognised in Balance Shest
Present Value of Funded Defined Benefit Obligation
["air Value of Plan Assels ..o,

Net Funded Obligation

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
CUITENE SEIVICE COSE ...vvvsviiiis ittt b
Past Seivice Cost

Amount recorded as Other Comprehensive Income
Opening amount recognised in OCI outside Profit & Loss Account .......................
Re-measurements during the period due to:
Changes in Financial ASSUMPLIONS ..........ccoovevoiieeeeecceeeeee e s
Actual return on Plan Assets less Interest on Plan ASSEtS ........c.ccovviiviieineeiienieenns

Closing amount recognised in OCI outside Profit & Loss Account ........................

Reconciliation of Net Liability/(Asset)

Opening Net Defined Benefit Liability / (ASSet) ...,
Expense charged to Profit and LoSS ACCOUNt .......coeuireriiiicrc i
Amount recognised outside Profit and Loss Account ...
2= o ¢ T —

Closing Net Deflned Benefit Liabllity / (AsSet) ..............cccooerrieevnriiceeccieeiiciies

Movement in Benefit Obligation

Opening of Defined Benefit Obligation ...
CUrrent SerVICe: COst x::ssersvmmsmvsevisisnmermsssesmsssiemss sy it s i
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation .........cc.c.ovveveeeeiiieeiccc e
Acturial Loss/(Gain) arising from change in Financial ASSUmptions ............coccoevvccvvienn.
Benefits paid from the FUN ...

Closing of Defined Benefit Obligation

Movement in Plan Assets

Opening Fair Value of Plan ASSEts ...........c..cccovviiiiiiieceescnse e
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest INCOME .........c.cooeiviiveiiiieiiiisieecee e
It OrE St I G OMIE i35t 85 AT 335 TSRS43 e TR T OH S A8 4 mmn e
Contributions by Employer
BENEfItS PAIA ...

Closing of Defined Benefit Obligation ...............cc.ccoovveeiieieiin e

Principal Acturial Assumptions

DiSCOUNtRAE seirssnsivssummsssmamuismssmsesnssismims eseis s S85sme s 1 R TS sS85
Salary Escalation Rate p.a. ...........

Sensitivity analysis for significat assumption is as shown below:

1,717.19
2,306.00

678.81

85.83

(61.73)
24.10

716.45

(65.34)
651.11

(768.25)
24.10
65.34

(678.81)

1,967.67
85.83
134.29
6.83
(477.42)

1,717.19

2,735.92
(58.51)
196.02

(477.42)
2,396.00

6.62
4.00

Particulars Sensitivity Level

1% Increase
1% Decrease
1% Increase
1% Decrease

Discounl RAle ........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
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31st March, 2020

1,628.49
1,817.28
1,816.95
1,627.35

1,967.67
2,735.02

768.25

89.00

(37.21)
51.79

525.06

191.39
© 716.45

(620.03)
51.79
(191.39)
(8.62)

(768.25)

2,408.65
89.00
164.70
(183.14)
(511.53)

__1.967.67

3,028.68
(267.64)
201.91
284.50
(511.53)

2,735.92

7.61
6.00

(% inlacs)

31st March, 2019

1,855.37
2,095.35
2,093.77
1,854.88
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The following are the Expected Future Benefit Payments for the Defined Benefit Plan:

St L S it = My ~ Riinlacs)
Particulars 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) ...... 392.36 406.11
Between 2 and 5 Years .......cocvviveieiiee e 600.34 704.39
BOYONA 5 YEAIS ....oviviviiiiie et 682.49 77842

Note 39

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Sr. No. Particulars Country of Incorporation  Extent of Holding

(i) Subsidiaries

1 Gannon Dunkerley & Co., Limited FZE ............cccccvoiinernne UAE 100.00%
2 Gannon Dunkerley Middle East WLL - Bahrain 80.00%
3 Khagra Joydev Resources Private Limited india 51.00%
(ii) Joint Ventures

4 Gannon Dunkerley & Co., LLC ........c.cociiiiieciieee UAE 49.00%
5 Gannon Dunkerley General Contracting Co., LLC ; UAE 49.00%
6 Gannon Dunkerley Guif Contracting LLC .......covvrvrrernreerenenen. UAE 49.00%
7 GDCL -TEIL coovvoieereieee oot e, India 69.00%
8 GDCL - MIS Shivam .. . India 51.00%
9 GDCL - CEPL ........ . India 65.00%
10 GDCL - Krishna .. . India 80.00%
11 GDEL » SMISL zucvucvsnsvssovmmmmssissmm s s s swis India 60.00%
12 GDCL - PSP (Gift City) v.veevvevieeeeeeeecve et India 51.00%
13 GDCL - PSP (Metro Amd)) .. . India 51.00%
14 GDCL-EMIT ..o - India 51.00%
15 SIPL = GDCL ..ot India 51.00%
(i) Associates

16 Facor Power Limited

17 Gannon Dunkerley Holdings Private Limited

18 Hindustan Housing Finance & Development Corporation Limited

19 Nalanda Consultants Private Limited

20 Ramkumar Morarka & Sons Private Limited

21 Travelera Private Limited

22 Courier Publications Private Limited

23 Ankush Publications Private Limited
24 United India Agencies Private Limited

25 Gannon Dunkerley Finance Limited

26 Gannon Dunkerley Realty Limited

27 Virat Infra Projects Private Limited

28 I.K. Infrastructure Private Limited

29 Greenland Realcon Private Limited

30 Greeniand Township Private Limited

31 Modern Ultra Home Solutions Private Limited
32 The Jaipur Udyog Limited

(iv) Key Management Personnel

33 Shri'Kamal M, Morarka ..:..uwmsaissmsmimimmsssi s s Director

34 Shri Parag C. Mehta ........ Director

35 Smt. Kimaya C. Sancheti . Director

36 Shri Manoj Kumar Singh .. Managing Director

37 Shri H. L. Pandey ......... .. Executive Director

38 Shri R P.AQAWal .......ocvieieee e, Vice President and Company Secretary

(v) Relatives of Key Management Personnel
39 Smt. Bharti K. Morarka

40 Shri S.K. Pandey

41 Shri A K. Pandey

{vi) Others

42 GDCL Employees Gratuity Fund
43 MRM - GDC Rural Research Foundation
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Nature of transaction

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates:
1. Service Charges Paid

Nalanda Consultants Pvt. Limited .............cccocooiiviiiiiiiieeee
Ramkumar Morarka & Sons Pvt. Limited ..

2. Travel Related Services
Travelera Pyt Limited ..o
3. Loss of Divisions
Courier Publications Pvt. Limited
Ankush Publications Pvt. Limited
4. Loan Granted
Gannon Dunkerley Finance Limited ................c.ccooevvininninnn,
Gannon Dunkerley Realty Limited .............
The Jaipur Udyog Limited ............c.oocooviiinnns

Khagra Joydev Resources Private Limited
b G I 4

GDCL- MIS Shivam ..
GDCL= EMIT iumvnsossmemnesmnm i ma s
BDCLsSILaPLOL wovmvsmssmmmsmimsmmssssimmseissssssssasmi
SIPL- GDCL

5. Loan Repaid

Gannon Dunkerley Finance Limited
Gannon Dunkerley Realty Limited ...
The JaipurUdyoq Limited ...
Khagra Joydev Resources Private Limited ...
Gannon Dunkerley Middle East WLL
Gannon Dunkerley & Co:, LLC ..o s
Gannon Dunkerley General Contracting Co., LLC .....................
Gannon Dunkerley Gulf Contracting LLC
GDCL= MIS ShiVam sy
SIPL = GDCL .ttt

8. Interest Received
Khagra Joydev Resources Private Limited ...............cccccooein
7. Service Charges Received

Gannono NDunkerley & Co | | imited F7F .
Gannon Dunkerley & Coi; LLC .uuuivmsemsssmsimsmmmmnme

Outstanding Balances:
1. Loans

Gannon Dunkerley Flnance Limited
Gannon Dunkerley Realty Limited ...
The Jaipur Udyog Limited .........ccciivvvveiiiiiviinmisimminiimsiiiessin
Khagra Joydev Resources Private Limited .................ccoeeviee.
Virat Infra Projects Private Limited
I. K. Infrastruture Private Limited ..........c..cccoceinininniinincnniniinn,
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Associate
Associate

Associate

Associate
Associate

Associate
Associate
Associate
Subsidiary
Joint Venture
Joint Venlure
Joint Venture
Joint Venture
Joint Venture
Joint Venture

Associate
Associate
Associate
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Joint Venture
Joint Venture
Joint Venture
Joint Venture
Joint Venture
Joint Venture

Subsidiary

Snbsidiary
Subsidiary

Assoclate
Associate
Associate
Subsidiary
Associate
Associate

Year ended

6.81
2.00
8.81

175.31

457.74
124.62
15.00
347.75
2414
16.98

1.1

410.91

1,408.25

70.16
6,193.29

5.99

66.99
438.89

279.28

7,054.60

28.54

854.99
(3,381.58)
7,566.58
212.96
2.89

212

R in'ese)

Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

1.94
1.94

183.03

375.49

375.49

28.80
796.73
122.07
42.00
249.39
0.00
0.00
27.23

18.34

1,284.56

601.26
71.57
0.19
42.00

1.66

8.51

175.00

900.18

12.69

1.25

1.66

29

925.15
9,117.13
7.441.97

169.42

2.89
242
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Rin Iacs)_

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Nature of transaction

Gannon Dunkekerley & Co., Limited FZE ...........c.ccconnviiinirennn, Subsidiary 646.96 646.96
Gannon Dunkerley Middle East WLL .. ... Subsidiary - 5.99
Gannon Dunkerley & Co., LLC Joint Venture 2,850.84 2,850.84
Gannon Dunkerley General Contracting Co., LLC . Joint Venture - 66.99
Gannon Dunkerley Gulf Contracting Co., LLC .......c.ccccovviiiinen Joint Venture - 438.89
GDCL- MIS Shivam Joint Venture 161.47 144.49
GDCL- CEPL ........... ... Joint Venture 25.30 1.16
GDCL- SIL - FLCL Joint Venture 73.39 62.28
16,7706.08 21,876.29
2. Other Advances
Travelera Pvt. Limited ..........ccocooiiiiiinenn Associate (25.29) 48.94
Courier Publications Pvt. Limited Associate 172.35 72.32
Ankush Publications Pvt. Limited ... Associate 2,724.58 2,711.08
F L | ———— 2,871.64 2,832.34
3. Trade Receivables
Facor Power Limited ..............coocoiviiiiiie e Associate 362.57 362.57
4. Advances to Suppliers
L e B 7 1 A N — Joint Venture 12.25 266.36
GDCL- CEPL ......... Joint Venture 275.30 239.83
GDCL- Krishna ... Joint Venture 980.28 632.53
GDCL-EMIT ..o ... Joint Venture (13.31) 27.23
1,254.52 1,165.95
5. Other Current Llabilitles
Gannon Dunkerley Holdings Private Limited ................ccccoeveee. Associate 10.82 10.79
United India Agencies Pvt. Limited ............... ... Associate 28.97 28.95
Ramkumar Morarka & Sons Pvt. Limited .. Associate 190.46 190.44
GDCL MIS Shivam ... Joint Venture 33.56 504.54
GDCL EMIT oo ... Joint Venture 177.50 -
Totalc.connmmmnmumicnnmansasn 441.30 734.72
Key Managerial Personnel and Relatives:
1. Sitting Fees
ShriParag C. Mehta .........ccocooiviiiiiree e Director 0.80 1.00
Shri Ravinder Kumar Manchanda ... Director # 0.20
Smt. Kimaya Chirag Sancheti ..............ccoooiiinini i, Director 0.80 0.60
R0 T T 160 T 180
2. Remuneration
Shri K. J.Rawal ..o Ex. Managing Director - 33.01
Shri Manoj Kumar Singh . ... Managing Director 160.00 152.44
ShriH. L. Pandey .......cccooveeiiiiiiiiiieie e Executive Director 130.91 106.96
Shri R: P: AQaWal vsuscsmsemmsmmsmsssmmssminsiinsisnaisnim ssstass Vice President and 62.95 63.18
Company Secielary
Shri S.K. PANAEY ..ot 44.49 11.91
Shri A:K: Pandey ..umusmmspmmsnasammmmsisssmmsmi 49.28 44.13
Total...ooooi e 447.63 441.66
3. Loan Received
Shri Kamal M. Morarka .........cccoooooeieeiierieeee e Director 4.65 320.80
4. Loan Repaid
Shri Kamal M: Morarka ... oo s issorsssisssiesaisns Director 6.19 17.20
Outstanding balances:
1. Current borrowings
Shri Kamal M. Morarka ......coewmssivmmmsmsssiisisssassssissis Director 307.48 309.01
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44.
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Necessary details and information in respect of terms and conditions of the work contracts executed at
some of the branches/divisions of the Company were not made available to the Auditors. In absence of the
same, it has not been possible for the Auditors to ensure the complete compliance with Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) - 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and its consequential effect on the loss
for the year of the Company.

The Company has not provided for the liability in respect of the leave encashment benefits to the
employees and the same are accounted for as and when paid, which is not in accordance with the
provisions of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) — 19 — Employee Benefits. In absence of any
information available, the liability thereof could not be ascertained. The loss of the Company for the year is
understated to that extent.

The Company has entered into agreement with a company, viz. Courier Publications Pvt. Limited and
thereby exercised control over Publication Division of this Company for a payment of annual
compensation. Consequently, the Company, based on the financial statements, accounted for losses of
this Company in the year 2018-19 aggregating to ¥ 405.28 lacs in its profit & loss statement. In absence of
further details for ownership and operational controls of this company, the Auditors are unable to comment
onthe same.

In respect of inventories and trade receivables, necessary documents and details for ageing of the
inventories and trade receivables are not made available to the Auditors. Details regarding physical
verification of inventories are also not made available to the Auditors. In absence of such information and
appropriate audit evidence, the Auditors have relied upon the explanations furnished to them by the
management and it has not been possible for the Auditors to ascertain whether any impairment to these
assets is required.

Stock of paintings at Marketing Division of the Company aggregating to ¥ 6,845.69 lacs is non-moving for
many years and is valued at cost. In absence of any professional valuation report, there is no base to verify
the net realizable value thereof. The management, however, contends that the entire stock of painting is
saleable for more than its cost and does not require any impairment. The Auditors have relied upon lhe
same.

Balance confirmations in respect of all borrowings accounts, trade receivables, trade payables, security
deposits, and loans to bodies corporate and others, Goods and Service Tax (GST) receivables, term
deposits with banks and advances have not been obtained. Inthe absence of balance confirmations from
respective parties and appropriate audit evidence, the entries and other supporting records have been
relied upon by the Auditors.

In respect of Libya Division of the Company, the situation in Libya continues to be uncertain as a result of
which there is no progress in the Company'’s project in Libya.The Company has already provided for all
expenses till date and does not consider the need for making any further provision for losses as on date.
Audited financial statements of Libya Division have not been received and financial data of this branch is
incorporated based on unaudited financials and other information received from the division,

Inrespect of fixed assets of the Company, details regarding physical verification have not been furnished to
the Auditors. In absence of such information and appropriate audit evidence, the Auditors have relied upon
the explanations furnished to them by the management and it has not been possible for the Auditors to
ascertain whether any impairment to the fixed assets is required. Intangible assets under development X
1,393.62 lacs are being carried forward for more lhan lhree years. In absence of any evaluation being
carried out in respect of these assets, it has not been possible to ascertain whether any impairment is
required.

Interest on certain loans, advances in the nature of loans and inter-corporate deposits including loans to a
subsidiary company, aggregating to¥ 68,456.21 lacs (Previous Year :364,751.83 lacs) is not charged.

The Company has not charged interest expenses of ¥ 911.08 lacs on the borrowed fund from the financial
institutions and banks during the year.

In absence of any formal agreements with the respective parties, classification of loans and advances into
long-term and short-term could not be verificd by the auditors and the same is relied upon the information
and explanations given by the management.
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50.

52.

53.

54.

55.

In respect of loans and trade advances to bodies corporate and others ¥ 11,475.99 lacs (Previous Year:
¥8,499.90 lacs), which are stagnant or in respect of which there are no regular supplies, efforts are
continued for recovery/adjustment of such loans and advances. It is expected that there would be suitable
recoveries/adjustments within a reasonable period.

Certain investments were not made available to the Auditors for verification and the same have, therefore,
been taken as certified by the management.

In the last week of March 2020, an outbreak situation arose in India on account of COVID-2019. The
Company has considered such outbreak situation as subsequent event to the Balance Sheet date i.e.,
March 31, 2020 in terms of Ind AS 10 “Reporting on Event After Balance Sheet Date” and has assessed
the operational and financial risk on going forward basis.

In assessing the impact on the recoverability of financial and non-financial assets, the extent to which the
COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s operations and financial results will depend on future
developments, which are still ur .ertain as on the reporting date, including, among other things, any new
information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread or
mitigate its impact whether government mandated or elected by the Company.

Theimpact on the operations and earnings/ cash flows of the Company due to COVID- 2019 pandemic may
be assessed only after future developments and clarity about domestic and export customers’
manufacturing facility which is still not certain and may lead it impracticable for the Company to estimate
projected revenue from operations and earnings for the next year and impact thereon due to COVID-19.
Though, the management will continue to closely monitor any material changes arising out of future
economic conditions and impact on its business.

Due to non-availability of indirect tax records, reconciliations of GST and input tax credits with returns could
not be verified.

Classifications of borrowings as well as securities offered against the borrowings are stated in Note No. 17
and 18 as provided by the management. In absence of any other audit evidences, Auditors have relied upon
the information furnished by the management.

Figures of previous year have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 55

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For PARK & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants PC. MEHTA Director

~ KIMAYA C. SANCHETI irectors
ASHISH DAVE R. P. AGARWAL MANQ.) KUMAR SINGH Managing Director
Partner Company Secretary H.L. PANDEY Executive Director
Mumbai, 30th January, 2021 Mumbai, 30th January, 2021
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